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June 19, 2003

Mr. [REDACTED]                                                                    

[REDACTED]

[REDACTED]

                                                                                                RE:  MV00004602


                                                                                            Mr. [REDACTED]
                                                                                            Unnamed ([REDACTED])
                                                                                            $1,500.00
Dear Mr. [REDACTED]:

The Commanding Officer, Coast Guard Hearing Office, Arlington, Virginia, has forwarded the files in Civil Penalty Case MV00004602, which includes your appeal as owner of the unnamed vessel [REDACTED].  The appeal is from the action of the Hearing Officer in assessing a $1,500.00 penalty for the following violation:

	Law/Regulation
	Nature of Violation
	Assessed Penalty

	46 CFR 15.605
	Failure to have an uninspected passenger vessel under the control of a properly licensed individual.
	$1,500.00


The violation was first observed on December 7, 1999, after Coast Guard Station Point Allerton received a distress call indicating that the vessel was disabled in Lynn Harbor, South of Revere Beach, near Lynn, Massachusetts.  

On appeal, your attorney, Mr. [REDACTED], denied the violation on your behalf.  To that end, Mr. [REDACTED] asserted that you had a “valid bareboat charter” in place at the time of the incident at issue.  Mr. [REDACTED] further asserted that your standard bareboat charter agreement, entered in the record, clearly indicated that charterers of your vessel were made fully aware that you could remain on board the vessel at their “discretion.”  Mr. [REDACTED] further asserted that “there was no evidence presented at the hearing contradicting the terms included within the form of bareboat charter agreement utilized.”  In addition, Mr. [REDACTED] requested that I “reconsider” the penalty assessed by the Hearing Officer.  To that end, he asserted that you have “made every good faith effort, including requesting assistance from the Coast Guard and an attorney, to operate…[your]…charter business in compliance with applicable law” and added that the Coast Guard’s guidance on the issue, NVIC 7-94 is “at best…vague.”  Finally, Mr. [REDACTED] requested that I provide you with “written approval” to operate your charter business in its present form while this matter is resolved.  To that end, he requested that you be “given seven (7) months immediately subsequent to any adverse decision” within which to obtain a valid Coast Guard license.  Your appeal is denied for the reasons described below.   

Before I begin, a brief recitation of the facts surrounding the violation is in order.  On December 7, 1999, the Massachusetts Environmental Police informed Coast Guard Station Port Allerton that you had been observed operating a state registered vessel, for hire, without the necessary Coast Guard License.  On the day of the incident, you used your “John Boat”, [REDACTED], to tow the non-self propelled flat bottom vessel [REDACTED] into the waters of Lynn Harbor, Massachusetts.  The six people with you had paid you to act as their hunting guide for the trip and had signed bareboat charter agreements to be in effect throughout the course of the voyage.  You chose the hunting location and operated the vessels at all times during the voyage.  On the day of the incident, two passengers traveled with you on your motorized “John Boat,” while you towed the four remaining hunters aboard the [REDACTED].  After traveling into the waters of Lynn Harbor, you anchored the towed vessel at a buoy approximately 20 feet from the breakwater and proceeded to attempt to transfer the two passengers aboard your motorized vessel onto the breakwater near Revere Beach.  During your attempt to offload the passengers, your vessel experienced engine trouble.  As weather conditions worsened and the seas became increasingly rough, you reported the distress situation to the Coast Guard.  Subsequently, all six passengers and yourself were rescued by the Coast Guard.        

I will now address the violation at issue.  33 CFR 15.605 makes clear that “[e]ach self-propelled, uninspected vessel carrying not more than six passengers, as defined by 46 USC 2101(21)(D), must be under the direction and control of an individual licensed by the Coast Guard.”  Pursuant to 46 USC 2101(21)(D)(i), incorporating 46 USC 2101(21)(A) by reference, the term “passenger” does NOT include “the owner or an individual representative of the owner or, in the case of a vessel under charter, an individual charterer or individual representative of the charterer.”  On appeal, your attorney essentially asserted that 33 CFR 15.605 is not applicable to the instant case because the bareboat charterers of your vessel were, by virtue of the bareboat charter, owners of the vessel.  I do not agree with this assertion.  

A "bareboat" or "demise" charter is defined as: 

the transfer of full possession and control of the vessel for the period covered by the contract. The charterer obtains the right to run the vessel and carry whatever cargo he chooses. The ship is manned and supplied by the charterer as well. The legal test of a demise is whether the owner of the vessel 'completely and exclusively relinquished possession, command and navigation to the demisee.' . . . For most purposes, the charterer in a demise is treated as an owner, termed pro hac vice. 

Thomas J. Schoenbaum, Admiralty and Maritime Law 382 (1987).  Although you have provided what you purport to be a copy of the “bareboat charter” used for your voyages, there is simply insufficient evidence in the record to allow me to conclude that, at the time of the incident, your vessel was operated under a valid bareboat charter.  Regardless of whether a written provision like the one that you provided was in effect for the voyage of December 7, 1999, I am convinced that a de facto passenger for hire situation existed at that time.  

It is well established that, for a valid bareboat charter to exist, complete and actual control must be divested by the owner to the charter party.  See Hansen v. E.I. Dupont Nemour & Co., 33 F.2d 94 (2d Cir. 1939); Guzman v. Pichirillo, 369 U.S. 698 (1962); U.S. v. Shea, 152 U.S. 178 (1874).  The existence of a bareboat charter is determined on a case-by-case analysis.  A review of the record in this case clearly indicates that there was no relinquishment of control of the vessel on your part.  As the Hearing Officer noted, you “operated the boats, selected the location to anchor the smaller boat, and made the attempt to disembark the Otto brothers from the larger boat onto the breakwater.”  Instead, as the Hearing Officer noted, the record clearly evidences that you acted as the master and crew for the relevant voyage, were responsible for the fuel and stores used during the voyage, and for setting the course of the voyage, itself.  The charterers were not, at any time, involved in either the operation or navigation of the vessel.  Since the charterers were in no way responsible for the vessel’s operation, it is evident that sufficient control was not divested to them.   Therefore, I find the violation proved.  

I will now discuss the other issues that your attorney raised on appeal.  In support of his request for mitigation of the penalty assessed by the Hearing Officer, your attorney noted that you did, in fact, contact the both the Coast Guard and an attorney in an attempt to operate your charter business “in compliance with applicable law.”  The record clearly evidences that the Hearing Officer considered your attempt at compliance when he mitigated the penalty from the $5000.00 preliminarily assessed to $1,500.00.  In his Final Letter of Decision, the Hearing Officer stated that “[i]n assessing a penalty…[he]…consider[ed]…[your]…past dealings with the Coast Guard…[and that you]…may have received some, perhaps inadvertent, encouragement for…[your]…attempts to stretch the law beyond its reasonable limits to encompass…[your]…guide service.”  In addition, the Hearing Officer noted that he “also consider[ed]…[your]…many years of experience on the water” in assessing the penalty.  Regardless of your intent, the record clearly evidences that a violation occurred.  Because the record clearly evidences that the Hearing Officer considered the points that your attorney raised on appeal with respect to mitigation, I will not mitigate the penalty further.  

Finally, I will address your attorney’s request that, in the event of an adverse decision on appeal, you be allowed to operate your charter business, presumably without penalty, for seven months while you attempt to obtain a Coast Guard license.  The requirement set forth in 46 CFR 15.605 is meant to ensure the safety of passengers aboard uninspected passenger vessels.  While the Coast Guard does not inspect such vessels, it nonetheless ensures that operators of uninspected passenger vessels meet all established licensing criteria.  As the Hearing Officer noted in his Final Letter of Decision, “[o]perating passenger boats without the required licensed operator can put people at risk and is a very serious violation.”  In addition to the fact that I simply do not have the authority necessary to grant your request, a representative of the Commander of the First Coast Guard District has, himself, made clear that “the OCMI will not sanction operation beyond the scope of a legitimate bareboat charter as defined by current regulations, without the appropriate license for any period of time.”  Therefore, you must obtain a Coast Guard license if you wish to continue operating your guide service in its present form.             

Accordingly, I find that there is substantial evidence in the record to support the Hearing Officer’s determination that the violations occurred and that you are the responsible party.  The Hearing Officer’s decision was neither arbitrary nor capricious and is hereby affirmed.  I find the penalty of $1,500.00 rather than the $5,000.00 maximum permitted by statute appropriate in light of the seriousness of the violations.  

In accordance with the regulations governing civil penalty proceedings, 33 CFR 1.07, this decision constitutes final agency action.  Payment of $1,500.00 by check or money order payable to the U.S. Coast Guard is due and should be remitted promptly, accompanied by a copy of this letter.  Send your payment to:

U.S. Coast Guard - Civil Penalties
P.O. Box 100160
Atlanta, GA  30384

Payments received within 30 days will not accrue interest.  However, interest at the annual rate of 4.25% accrues from the date of this letter if payment is not received within 30 days.  Payments received after 30 days will be assessed an administrative charge of $12.00 per month for the cost of collecting the debt.  If the debt remains unpaid for over 90 days, a 6% per annum late payment penalty will be assessed on the balance of the debt, the accrued interest, and administrative costs.


                                                    Sincerely,


//S//


david j. kantor

Deputy Chief,

Office of Maritime and International Law 

By direction of the Commandant

Copy:  Commanding Officer, Coast Guard Hearing Office 
            Commanding Officer, Coast Guard Finance Center 
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